
Regular Meeting of the Members of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
December 9th , 2024 – Noon 

40 Main Street, Suite A Cortland, NY 13045 

To Live Stream This Meeting Go To… 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81716098987?pwd=HjwNwbXTz2UlHOm8ODUjFdxhfbb6nj.1 

Roll Call- 

Mike McMahon  Chairman  

Stephen Compagni Vice Chairman 

Deborah Hayden Treasurer 

Clint Brooks  Secretary 

Johanna Ames  Member 

Dr. Kathleen Burke Member 

Donald Richards Member 

Brendan O’Bryan Executive Director 

Andrea Skeels  Director of Finance and 

Special Projects  

John Sidd Agency Counsel  

Approval of Minutes -  November 12th, 2024 

New Business 
1. Review/Authorize moving of the IDA annual meeting from December to February

2. Adoption and approval of new policies and procedures for Organization Compliance and 
prequalification in the NYS Grants Gateway: Minority and Women-Owned Business 
Enterprises, Anti-Nepotism; and Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

3. Review Payment In Lieu Of Tax (PILOT) Employment Affidavits

Monthly Reports 
1.)Finance Report 
2.)Director’s Report 

Adjourn – 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81716098987?pwd=HjwNwbXTz2UlHOm8ODUjFdxhfbb6nj.1




Minutes of the Meeting of the Members of the Cortland County Industrial Development 
Agency 

November 12th, 2024 – Noon 
40-42 Main Street, Suite A, 2nd Floor Cortland New York, 13405

Roll Call – Chairman McMahon called the meeting to order at 12:41 PM 

Mike McMahon  Chairman  Present 

Stephen Compagni Vice Chairman Present 

Deborah Hayden Treasurer Present 

Clint Brooks  Secretary Present 

Johanna Ames  Member Absent 

Dr. Kathleen Burke Member Absent 

Donald Richards Member Absent 

Brendan O’Bryan Executive Director Present 

Andrea Skeels Director of Finance and 

Special Projects 

Present 

Carpenters Local 277 Remote 

Agency Counsel  Present 

AK Community/Kajen LLC Present 

Marie Weiss 

John Sidd 

Steve Terwilliger 

Scott Hourigan Intern – Binghamton 

Univeristy 

Present 

James Bonner New York, Susquehanna 

and Western Railway 

Corporation (NYS&W) 

Present 

Melanie Boyer NYS&W Present 



 
 

Approval of Minutes - September 9th, 2024 – Chairman McMahon made a motion to accept 
the minutes as presented, Ms. Hayden seconded the motion; all in favor, none opposed.  
 
New Business 

 
Chairman McMahon presented a motion to approve the new slate of signatories for all CCDC 
Accounts. These changes include; adding Andrea Skeels (Director of Finance and Special 
Projects), removing Chairman McMahon, and continuing with Members Ms. Hayden, Mr. 
Brooks and Executive Director Brendan O’Bryan. Mr. Compagni moved the motion with Mr. 
Brooks second; all voting in favor, none opposed. 
 
Discussion: Current lease agreement between the IDA and NYS&W was discussed. This lease 
was a one-year agreement that is set to expire at the end of 2024. Payments to all the 
municipalities was discussed, and how the payments are agreed upon. NYS&W is purposing to 
the IDA another one-year extension of the lease, in order to negotiate a longer term extension. 
A motion was made by Mr. Compagni to extend the current terms of the lease agreement between 
NYS&W and The IDA for a period of 12 months, in order to negotiate a longer term extension, 
seconded by Mr. Brooks; all voting in favor, none opposed. 
 
Reviewed and discussed a request for a time extension from AK Communities/Kajen LLC 
project to use their full sales tax exemption and to lease up the created housing units until March 
31, 2025. Mr. Terwilliger provided a brief project update, and justification for the delay in 
finishing the project. Motion to extend the sales tax exemption and the leasing requirements until 
March 31, 2025 was made by Chairman McMahon, seconded by Mr. Compagni, all voting in 
favor, none opposed. 
 
 
Monthly Reports 
1.)Finance Report – Ms. Skeels reviewed the monthly financial statements. 
2.)Director’s Report – Reviewed agency activities since the last meeting (attached document) 

 
Adjourn – The meeting was adjourned at 1:18 PM.  





Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises: 

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency and Business 
Development Corporation is committed to actively promoting equal 
opportunity for participation by Minority and Women-Owned 
Business Enterprises (MWBEs) in all aspects of our contracting and 
procurement activities, including construction, professional 
services, and goods procurement. We will actively solicit, evaluate, 
and consider qualified MWBEs for contracts and subcontracts, 
consistent with our commitment to fair and open competition, to 
achieve meaningful participation in our business operations. 

 

Anti nepotism: 

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency and Business Development 
Corporation is committed to a policy of Business Development and 
advancement based on qualifications, merit, and credentials and does not 
discriminate in favor of or in opposition to that person’s or organizational 
relationships. 

 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion: 

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency and Business Development 
Corporation is dedicated to building a diverse, equitable, and inclusive 
workplace where everyone feels valued, respected, and empowered to 
contribute their unique perspectives and talents, regardless of race, ethnicity, 
gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, age, disability, national 
origin, marital status, or veteran status. 





Cortland County IDA
Balance Sheet

November 30, 2024

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
NBT - Checking 5112 $ 33,283.17
NBT Proj Invest Checking 1,085,172.64
NBT Money Mkt Savings 49,435.99
Prepaid Expenses 1,306.93

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,169,198.73

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land-Railroad Properties 209,818.00
Land-Contento Property 91,835.00
Land-Cleveland St - Apex 303,143.60
Leasehold Improvements 3,376.80
Accum.Depreciation-L.H.I. (3,207.96)
Office Equipment/Furniture 8,068.08
Accum.Depreciation-FF&E (5,986.11)

NET PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT 607,047.41

RECEIVABLES
Lease A/R - Park Outdoor 55,587.32

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 55,587.32

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,831,833.46

LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE

CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 0.00

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Inflows-Leases $ 55,587.32

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 55,587.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES 55,587.32

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted  Earnings 1,533,136.80
Net Income 243,109.34

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,776,246.14

TOTAL LIAB &  FUND BALANCE $ 1,831,833.46



Page: 1

Cortland County IDA
Income Statement

For the Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2024

Current Month Year to Date
REVENUE
Application Fees $ 0.00 $ 10,000.00
Project Fee 0.00 252,000.00
Interest on Deposits 2,226.04 29,413.63
Lease Interest Revenue 0.00 1,824.63
Land Lease 0.00 14,508.37
Cort Crown Homes PILOT 0.00 24,258.90
Creamery Hills PILOT 0.00 10,635.42
83-85 Main LLC PILOT 0.00 14,000.00
Lapeer Cortland Solar PILOT 0.00 45,000.00
DG NY 1 C Ville LLC 0.00 23,409.00
Janis Solar LLC 0.00 31,212.00
Yellow 3 LLC 0.00 17,166.60
DG NY C'Ville #3 0.00 22,950.00
Crescent Commons 0.00 25,000.00

Total Revenue 2,226.04 521,378.55

TOTAL REVENUE 2,226.04 521,378.55

EXPENSES
Apex/Cleveland St Property 33.14 1,129.29
Accounting 0.00 7,900.00
Legal 150.00 3,208.90
Office Supplies/Maintenance 0.00 299.93
Property Tax-Sewer/Water 0.00 201.04
D & O Insurance 119.50 1,314.50
Depreciation 0.00 583.63
Cort Crown Homes PILOT 0.00 24,258.90
Creamery Hills PILOT 0.00 10,635.42
83-85 Main LLC PILOT 0.00 14,000.00
Lapeer Cortland Solar PILOT 0.00 45,000.00
DG NY 1 C Ville 0.00 23,409.00
Janis Solar LLC 0.00 31,212.00
Yellow 3 LLC 0.00 17,166.60
DG NY C'Ville #3 0.00 22,950.00
Crescent Commons 0.00 25,000.00
BDC Admin Support 0.00 50,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 302.64 278,269.21

NET INCOME $ 1,923.40 $ 243,109.34



 
 

 
 

Review Payment In Lieu Of 

Tax (PILOT) Employment 

Affidavits  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31
















































	2024 PILOT Project Summary and Affidavits.pdf
	IDA Board Book Dec 2024 Meeting DRAFT.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	IDA Board Book Dec 2024 Meeting DRAFT.pdf
	IDA Agenda Dec 2024 Meeting DRAFT.pdf
	IDA Nov 2024 Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	IDA Nov 2024 Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf


	November IDA Board Book 11.12.24.pdf

	Grants Gateway Policies.pdf

	PILOT Review Aff..pdf
	IDA Nov 2024 Balance Sheet.pdf
	IDA Nov 2024 Income Stmnt.pdf



